7ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Zoning Board of Adjustment
27 School Street
HILLSBOROUGH, NH
October 27,2022

DATE APPROVED: 03/13/23

TIME: 7:00 p.m. — 9:30 p.m.

CHAIRPERSON: Roger Racette

VICE CHAIRPERSON: Russell Galpin

MEMBERS: Lucy Pivonka, John Segedy, Meg Curtis-Sauer

PLANNING DIRECTOR: Robyn Payson

ALTERNATES: Mark Bodanza,

EXCUSED Mark Bodanza

Public Present: Riche’ Colcombe, Katherine Charrette, Leigh Bosse, Adam Charrette, Charles
Hoegen, Erika Hoegen

CALL TO ORDER:
Pledge of Allegiance

Public Hearing

2 Special Exceptions

2 West Main Street (Map 23 Lot 157)
Charles Hoegen/Brandin Swisher

There was discussion about Meg Curtis-Sauer participating by ZOOM because she is out of
state.

Roger Racette asked Meg if she wished to recuse herself because she was not at the meeting held
10/24/22.

Roger Racette opened it up to comment from the Board.

Russ Galpin said she missed a lot of the presentations, but to him it doesn’t make a great deal of
difference, but it may to the applicant.

Lucy Pivonka asked Meg Curtis-Sauer if she had an opportunity to listen to the recording of the
previous meeting.

Meg Curtis-Sauer said she had.
Lucy Pivonka asked Meg Curtis-Sauer if she had any questions and if she was up to speed.

Meg said she was up to speed and that she had no questions.

Page 1 of 22



ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Roger said as long as Meg was entering the meeting with an open mind then he didn’t have a
problem.

John Segedy said he thought she had every right to participate. He said it could not harm the
applicant.

Leigh Bosse said that there could be a major legal challenge if Meg Curtis-Sauer were to
participate. He said that the applicant agreed to proceed with four people, and he was “stuck
with that. He said allowing Meg to participate would give the applicant an advantage.

John Segedy said the “objectors” who were at the Monday meeting might have an opinion.
Roger Racette said to Leigh Bosse that the statute says that the option of recusing oneself is up to
the member. He said the Board can advise but ultimately the member decides whether or not to
recuse themselves.

Katherine Charrette said that she had no concerns about Meg participating or not.

Riche Colcombe said Meg wasn’t present for the first hearing and she thought bringing her in
“mid-way through” is not appropriate.

Roger didn’t think there was a way to legally prevent Meg from voting. He said he understood
Leigh’s point that it could open it up to an appeal.

John Segedy said a member could be present at the beginning of a hearing but be out sick at the
next hearing and an alternate could take their place. He said in his opinion, he didn’t think a
court would “throw it out”, '

There was further discussion about Meg Curtis-Sauer’s participation.

Roger said to Meg that she heard the discussion, and by statute the choice is hers whether she
recuses herself,

Meg Curtis-Sauer said she will stay and if she has any questions, she will ask them or she will
abstain.

Mr. Hoegen said that he had no problem with Meg sitting on the case.

Roger Racette said that at the hearing was left open at the last meeting so they would pick up
from there.

Robyn Payson read a letter from the Economic Development Commission to be entered into the
record. (See attached).

Roger Racette asked for public comment on the 2 West Main Street application.

Page 2 of 22



ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Riche Colcombe asked the Board to consider the Master Plan and said that putting residential
space at ground level does not support the commercial district, it does not support the vision that
we have for this town. As what was suggested by the Economic Development Commission, that
the use goes against what our plan is on the Economic Development Commission. She said she
just doesn’t think it’s a good idea. She said this was her personal opinion, she was not
representing the Chamber of Commerce or the EDC.

John Segedy asked Riche Colcombe to reference specific points in the Master Plan more than a
general impression, he said he wanted to know specific pages in the Master Plan because he read
it and couldn’t find anything.

Riche Colcombe said she did not have her notes with her, but she referred to sections 2.1 and 2.2
of the Master Plan and her previous comments. Riche’ said she believed that traffic at the
driveway would impede the traffic on West Main Street at the intersection. She said her concern
is that if this is made residential, what’s to stop Granite Sate Computers, or 5 West Main Street
from going all residential?

Roger Racette said each application is on a case-by-case basis.

Riche’ Colcombe said they have to look at how we are supporting small business in town. She
said there are people putting significant investments into the downtown to revitalize it. She said
she thinks it is a step backward.

Leigh Bosse said he has been passionate about the redevelopment of the central square for 30
years. He said he can’t cite the specific section of the Master Plan or Zoning Ordinance;
however, both refer to the Central Business District as commercial being the primarily permitted
use. Residential is allowed by Special Exception. The emphasis is developing business. The
Chamber of Commerce, the Economic Development Committee and the two selectmen he spoke
to at the meeting last night don’t think it’s a good idea either, but they don’t want to come and
“step on the ZBA’s toes”. Finally, in 30 years we have momentum to restore the commercial
part of the town. Developers have purchased and are redeveloping one whole side of the town.
You can’t come away thinking that approval of this will not destroy that momentum and
completely negate the intent of the Central Business District. He said he can’t urge the Board
strongly enough to please turn this down.

Roger Racette said they could do that if one of the conditions is not met.

Leigh Bosse said that the condition is that it does not fit the character of the district. He said
everybody there except the applicant is telling them that.

Roger Racette said, when you say its out of character, the Central Business District is a mixed-
use district. That’s the character.

Katherine Charrette asked at what would tilt the Central Business District into no longer being

the Central Business District. At what point should the Planning Board re-zone the district
because it is no longer a business district?

Page 3 of 22




ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

John Segedy said it has nothing to do with how many residential units. It was passed by the
town, and this is the zone. If you want to change that to something else, you can.

Katherine Charrette said she does not want to change it; she wants to make people aware of
where it would change.

John Segedy said, you could have all business or all residential and the zone would not change.

Katherine Charrette said she was confused at the previous meeting when a member said if they
had to vote for the units on Bridge Street they would have to vote yes on the apartments on Main
Street. She said it was her understanding that each application was decided on a case-by-case
basis. If the Zoning Board says yes to this, it is a huge contradiction to say they would have to
approve both applications.

Russ Galpin said there is a back and forth going between two people and that is not supposed to
happen.

Katherine Charrette said she didn’t understand where the back and forth was.
John Segedy said it was because he was answering her.

Katherine Charrette asked for permission to continue. She said that this will be taking away 2/3
of store fronts in a key building in town with multiple people wanting store space and wanting
commercial space. With this there would be no store fronts on Main Street. She said she didn’t
want to drink bourbon and smoke cigars and see laundry blowing in the wind and she didn’t
think her customers would like to see that.

From a business standpoint, you are telling your tenants that at some point they will no longer be
able to afford this place. It will no longer be a reasonable place to live if everything else that we
agree with as a ZBA, the EDC, the Planning Board and the Selectboard goes as planned.

We have seen three investors purchase property in less than a year to turn things around
downtown. She said she doesn’t think they are at the point where we have to say “This person
wants to buy it, let’s just change all the rules for them.” She said the Hoegen’s are very nice
people and she very much respects how they treat their tenants and how they operate any of their
businesses, but this is not about individual relationships, it is about protecting a piece of property
in the Central Business District for the future.

It could be approved on the basis that they trust that the Hoegen’s, and they are going to say yes
to a business instead of a residence which makes more sense but if some hardship comes their
way and it goes into somebody else’s hands that doesn’t care as much about this town it could
very well go into the same problem Hillsborough has faced with the Rumrill building and other
buildings. She said she would be really bummed to see the Hoegan’s walk away from this
property because she thinks that they will do amazing things, but she would beg all parties to not
to do this.

Page 4 of 22



7ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Russ Galpin said he wanted to point out that this application is for a Special Exception, not a
Variance which means the ZBA has to have a reason why it is not allowed. In a Variance the
applicant has to prove why it should be approved, which means the Planning Board, allowed this
sort of thing to take place. He said whether he agrees or disagrees with this application he is not
arguing at this point, but he doesn’t think the people understand the difference between a Special
Exception and a Variance.

Katherine Charrette said it is not the civilian’s responsibility to understand the difference as
much as the Board between a Variance and a Special Exception. She said she apologized for
whatever confusion she is having but her point remains the same. The character of the town will
change. She said at the last meeting she believed Mr. Galpin was the longest living resident in
town.

Russ Galpin said he was.

Katherine Charrette asked him if he remembered if that building being more successtul with
businesses or apartments on the first floor.

Russ Galpin said as he remembers it there was a restaurant in it.

Katherine Charrette asked if in all of the time he knew of the building if it had been left vacant or
that the building has had businesses in it.

Rus Galpin said he does not keep track of time.

Katherine Charrette said more often than not there have been businesses there. She said she did
not think in the economy that we have faced as a mill town, like many other main street
communities in New Hampshire and New England that we should be throwing in our
commercial properties to residential zoning. She said it doesn’t make any sense to her
downtown.

She said this is a building that has been held hostage. Brandin Swisher is not here; he does not
go to the town to cry about his taxes. She said she has done the landscaping for his building, and
he couldn’t care less about it. She said that what she has been saying is that the building has not
been unavailable to commercial investors, it has been available for a quick cash offer a little bit
below what he is asking for. She said there is no way that building would not be successful as a
commercial property on the main street. It says throughout the entire Master Plan depending on
which way your perspective is and there is more follow through with the Charrette. There is no
data.

Roger Racette said he would like to make a comment on the Master Plan. He said he has also
read it thoroughly and what he saw was several references to the Central Business District and it
always being referred to as a mixed-use district. He also looked for specific references to street
level residential. He said the Master Plan does not address it to that specific level. The Master
Plan looks at an over all picture as where we want to go. It doesn’t get to the point of saying it is
the goal of the Town to prevent residential used at street level.

Page 5 of 22




ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Katherine Charrette said she recognizes that there is a little bit of a loophole depending on which
way you are looking at it. She asked where in Concord do you see ground level apartments,
where are the ground level apartments in Keene and Peterborough? They are important things to
consider when you are thinking about the progression of the economy in the area.

Roger Racette said he understands about going to Concord and this and that, but as Russ pointed
out this is a Special Exception that is based on conditions being met. That is what the Board has
to hold themselves to.

Katherine Charrette said she couldn’t care less about apartments on Bridge Street. She said she
is thinking about the investors. She said she has invested almost a million dollars in town. She
said she didn’t do that lightly without research. She said ground level apartments are detrimental
to Central Business Districts. She said she understands there is a tiny loophole where it says it is
not going to change the character, but it is significantly going to change the character. She said
there is a significant amount of data missing to make this significant change.

Lucy Pivonka said she knows the Master Plan was created before the Charrette. She said it was
clear to her in the Charrette that the people who came out for the Charrette understood that a
mixed use means businesses downstairs and apartments upstairs. The people that attended the
Charrette said they wanted the downtown to be more like downtown Peterborough with shops
and apartments above them. It’s very walkable and the downtown is unique. The building is
mixed use, and the name Central Business District tells you right there that it is a business
district. She said she remembers when there were shops in those storefronts. It was very
walkable. She said you could go out for a meal and £o to some interesting shops. She said she
thought it would be out of character for the storefronts to be converted into something else.

Leigh Bosse said Russ Galpin hit it directly on the head. The Master Plan and the Zoning
Ordinance are somewhat backstage. This is a Special Exception, and it must meet seven specific
criteria. You have the Chamber of Commerce, the Economic Development Committee, the
opinion of two of the Selectmen (Russ Galpin pointed out that was hearsay) say it is not in the
character of this district to allow the conversion. He said he thought it would be arrogant of the
ZBA to substitute a contrary opinion in the face of that testimony. It is not in the character of the
Central Business District.

Roger Racette said it is in character of the upper two stories to be residential. He said there is a
part of this application that has been ignored and it needs to be discussed. Part of this proposal is
to remove the white building (10 West Main Street and the garage behind it, Let’s consider the
benefits to the Central Business District with that white building gone. If you talk about
something that is out of character in the Central Business District, that white house is the most
out of character in the Central Business District and part of this proposal is to remove that.

Lucy Pivonka said we cannot consider the white house when the Board is considering this
application. She said it was outside their purview.

Roger Racette said it is in the proposal.

Page 6 of 22



7ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Lucy Pivonka said only about the removal. The removal of the house is tentative, and the Board
isn’t looking at that.

Roger Racette said a parking lot in the Central Business District would be more in character than
the white house.

Katherine Charrette asked why the white house is out of character with the nei ghborhood.

Roger Racette said that house is a grandfathered non-conforming use. The objective of zoning is
when you have a non-conforming use is to bring that property into compliance. Taking the
house down and creating a parking lot will make the property in total compliance with zoning.

John Segedy said if the Board were to grant a Special Exception, that is not non-conforming. It
is a permitted use granted by Special Exception. The changed building would not be a non-
conforming building.

Lucy Pivonka said its not the Board’s job to decide changing a building from a non-conforming
use to a conforming use.

Roger Racette said it was an objective.

Lucy Pivonka said she thinks they are pulling in a lot of things that they shouldn’t be looking at.
She said they need to go through the application and address the criteria.

John Segedy says the application includes “creating ample parking by removing buildings at 10
West Main Street” He said it is in the application.

Lucy Pivonka said it was not something that the Board should be considering when we consider
these applications.

Katherine Charrette said to take down a building only saying it is going to make it conform and
now this business can function changing 1/3 of its space is somehow changing the character of
the building. If I change 1/3 of your face, you are going to look different and absolutely it
changes the characteristics of downtown. She said she doesn’t understand how the Board is in
any position to sacrifice one of its cornerstone buildings and that it is not going to ruin the
character of downtown.

Meg Curtis-Sauer asked how many apartments were going to be on the second floor.

Mr. Hoegen said there are three floors above West Main Street. The second and third floor
consist of five apartments.

Meg Curtis-Sauer said she doesn’t think they should lose track of the fact that many years ago,
that corner on Bridge Street and West Main Street below was where “German John’s” got its
start. If a building has sufficient residential it would seem like we should consider having
sufficient commercial going in also.

Page 7 of 22




ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Mr. Hoegen said that there is a commercial unit going in on the ground floor.

Riche’ Colcombe said the Board should be focused on the Special Exception and the seven
criteria, and if they are met. She said first off, we are only talking about two units at ground
level. So, when the parking is being talked about, I would hate to think we are losing sight of the
fact that the parking is still needed for the apartments on the second and third floors,

When you look at the Special Exception and you look at the reference to Table 4 in the zoning,
under the Central Business District regarding dwellings it specifically mentions a Special
Exception, the second item being “Dwellings at street level require a Special Exception, the
minimum floor area for any dwelling shall be 600 sq ft or greater.” She said she thinks in this
table, just by the fact that it is requiring a Special Exception for a dwelling on the ground floor, is
stating that in this district dwellings at street level are not standard. She said she doesn’t think it
falls under mixed use.

She said she didn’t think mixed use was anticipating residential on the first floor and commercial
on another floor. She said as she went through the criteria on the application criteria B that states
“The requested use will not create undue traffic congestion or unduly impair pedestrian safety”.
She said she believes the addition and expansion of the parking will, in adding more cars for
seven to nine units will create traffic congestion and an issue that will create difficulty with that
intersection.

Roger Racette said if the proposed use of this building was with commercial at street level and
he bought the house next door to create the parking lot and he had apartments upstairs and
commercial downstairs, he would not have to be at the ZBA and there would be the same
situation with the parking lot.

Riche’ Colcombe said that is not on the application or up for discussion. This application still
creates an issue where it does impede the safety of pedestrians and the traffic. She then
addressed criteria “F” which states “The requested use will not create hazards to the health,
safety, or general welfare of the public, nor be detrimental to or out of character with the
adjacent neighborhood”. She said she doesn’t think the application meets that. Putting two
apartments on the first floor does change the character of the neighborhood.

The neighborhood is a Central Business District. Directly across the street is the Central
Emporium, which is going to, and has in the past had several businesses. The current owner is in
the process of opening up all of those businesses so that she can fill that building as well as the
second floor. She is making a huge investment in getting the second floor ADA compliant so
that can be utilized as well for her business. It is adjacent to the neighborhood and out of
character with the neighborhood.

Taking down the white building is not part of this Special Exception; it increases the parking

which also increases the traffic in and out. The traffic taking a left-hand turn or the traffic taking
aright and cutting into the traffic that is lined up at that stop light.

Page 8 of 22



7ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

She then brought up criteria G. “The requested use is consistent with the spirit and intent of this
Ordinance and the Master Plan”. She said the Master Plan is part of this criteria. She said it
should be part of the consideration. She cited section 2.1 and 2.5 “Hillsborough Tomorrow”
section of the Master Plan talks about revitalization of the Central Business District and there
being an emphasis on commercial development in the Central Business District and other
commercial zones. She said this application is not in the spirit of the Master Plan.

She talked about the investments that have been made in the Commercial and Central Business
Districts. She spoke about Livingston’s new building, the addition of selling Polaris vehicles.
This will bring traffic into town and what kind of traffic do we want them to see? Angus Lea
golf course is going to become an event venue. Domino’s is expected to come in 2023. The old
Hillsborough House of Pizza building has been converted into a martial arts studio. This past
summer, the Summer Market at Butler Park really showed what we can do in this town. The
250" Committee showed what can be done with this town as far as bringing in tourism. Taco
Beyando held Beyondo-palooza that brought in vendors and music and was very well attended.
She said she thinks she does have the spirit of the Commercial and Central Business District
going in the right direction. She said she thinks putting two units on the ground level would be
detrimental to what these investors have done. She said she is only talking about the two on
West Main Street. That leaves seven other units for this buyer to put into his building. She said
she does not think it meets the criteria.

Roger Racette said the ground floor will always have the option to be commercial. If the rentals
don’t work out, he has a perfect right to use it commercially.

Riche’ Colcombe said she was not arguing that point. She was looking at the application
referred again to criteria “G”. She said the request is to make 2 residential spaces with one
commercial space which will probably be an unoccupied real estate office. She said this does
not meet the spirit of the Economic Base chapter of the Master Plan. She said she does not
believe it qualifies under all of the conditions.

Katherine Charrette said the Special Exception criteria are set up to protect these properties. She
said it would be nice to see somebody give that building a shot as a commercial space.

Charles Hoegen said he did research and found that in 2016, Roger Racette had voted in favor of
the Special Exception for residential on the ground floor of 1 West Main Street. He said after he
made that vote the new Master Plan and Charrette in 2018 gave him the opportunity to change
his vote. He said you have to be consistent.

He said these disputes should have been heard at the Special Exception hearing on 5 Depot Street
application where a single-family residential house is more commercially motivated. A single-
family home is not mentioned anywhere in the Master Plan, it’s a Special Exception. There is no
question that a single-family dwelling is a benefit to this district. However, nobody was
opposed. Mr. Hoegen referred to Roger Racette and said that he was the only one opposed.
Everybody on the Board voted against you and there was very little public comment. Now as the

Chairman, you have the toughest obligation and asked if he needs to change his vote again to
agree with what has already been voted in this segment of town.

Page 9 of 22



ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

It has already been agreed that a single-family building is in the “spirit and intent” of the Master
Plan, it was voted 4-1. It was approved. He said he is here now asking for something that is
listed in the Master Plan. Multi-family homes are listed. We are grasping at straws with the
driveway issue. He said if he doesn’t do anything with the white building except fix it and rent it
out people have to back out into traffic. There is no turnaround. The new parking is going to
have that. When he did this in Claremont their requirement was 1 % parking spots per residential
unit. At 14 spaces, that meets the requirement. That was for a variance, and it was granted. He
said he didn’t now if anyone has seen Claremont but it is revitalizing. If this building was such a
key cornerstone, why is it the last one to go?

Katherine Charrette said it was because Brandin wouldn’t sell it.

Mr. Hoegen said another member of his family had an agreement with him. He said he can do
the project. He said he can get rid of the vacant building

Roger Racette asked if his position still was that if the Special Exception were denied totally or
partially, would it be abandoned?

Mr. Hoegen said yes.
Lucy Pivonka said she didn’t think that is something that should be asked.
John Segedy said Boards do often try and negotiate compromises.

Roger Racette said, compromising is something that comes up quite often in Hillsborough. It
also in other communities when dealing with waterfront properties. A lot of these waterfiont
properties that were built in the 1950’s are very small camps. People are buying them and want
to retire in them, and they want something bigger. Now they come to the Zoning Board. They
want to tear down what’s there and rebuild but it’s got to be bigger. They have a right to build
on that same footprint which means that it’s got to be the same size. But what most Zoning
Board’s do is if they are willing to compromise, meaning that if you are willing to push the
house back and make it more compliant with zoning, they would allow more square footage in
the house. Pretty much all zoning boards would do that.

Riche’ Colcombe asked how that was relevant.

Roger Racette said that all he was saying was, there is give and take.

Leigh Bosse said from the opening of this hearing right through the last second this Board gets
the last say in your deliberations. He said he has the distinct feeling that the Chairman and Mr,
Segedy have been acting more as advocates than as an impartial board. You have rebutted every
comment made by an abutter. It is totally inappropriate, and he thinks they should recuse

themselves because they are not acting impartially.

Rus Galpin made a motion to cease public debate and close the public hearing. John Segedy
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously, and the public hearing was closed.

Page 10 of 22



7ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-Yes, John Segedy-Yes,
Meg Curtis-Sauer-Yes. The public hearing is closed.

John Segedy said they should first discuss Master Plan issue and then get into the specifics
because they recessed October 24 gpecifically because people wanted the chance to look at the
Master Plan and everyone had the opportunity to do that.

John Segedy said he read through the Master Plan, and he could find nothing at all that specifies

whether a Special Exception or whether ground floor residences were disfavored in any way. He
said he has asked people where they had seen that and to let him know. He said he couldn’t find
it and no one has pointed it out.

Roger Racette said when he reviewed the Master Plan, the impression he got was that the Master
Plan is a big wish list, this is the direction that we want to go in. It does not get into the specifics
of placing any restrictions, it is a philosophical direction. The Master Plan does not deal with
issues at the level of what the Board is dealing with.

John Segedy said he wanted to refer to letter “G” and the Zoning Ordinance and the Master Plan,
regardless of whether or not you agree that the Master Plan does or doesn’t have any information
or leans one way or the other to the extent they have to take both into consideration to the extent
they are in conflict. Even if the Master Plan says this doesn’t fit, the ordinance would take
precedence.

John Segedy said there was a proposal to make ground floor residential use illegal and it failed at
Town Meeting 239-329 in 2016. The opportunity was there for people to say that.

Joh Segedy said the Master Plan was done by the Planning Board. They have committees and
other people give input but ultimately, they have to have a public hearing, and they listen to the
public. It was decided by seven residents, and it is a good summary. He said he was on an early
committee and they worked on the survey collecting info from some of the residents but there are
a lot of contradictions. You could look through that survey and find quotes for this point of view
and the other point of view but the vote on the ordinance which takes precedence. He said things
are changing downtown and if people want to get 20 people together and try the same thing
again which would have said if it passed “the conversion of any street level commercial unit into
a residential dwelling unit is prohibited.” They can put that same thing forward again. Until that
happens that is the ordinance.

Lucy Pivonka referred to page 2.1 of the Master Plan stating residents were in favor of
revitalization of the Central Business District and attracting new businesses. She said the zoning
says we really have to get special permission to put apartments at ground level because it doesn’t
agree with the Master Plan.

Roger Racette said he apologizes if he appeared to be advocating for this. He said he was not
advocating for this, he wanted to make sure that all points and counterpoints were expressed.

Page 11 of 22



ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

He said the Charrette mentioned the condition of the buildings in the Central Business District as
being in need of repair and the appearance of the Central Business District has room for
improvement which is why he believes removing the white house will go a long way to
improving the appearance of the Central Business District and removal of the white house is part
of this proposal. As far as the Master Plan goes, he stated his opinion but that is just his
understanding of the Master Plan is that it does not attempt to place restrictions on anything. It is
aplan. It doesn’t restrict anything, but it does indicate that the commercial aspect of the Central
Business District should be preserved.

The Board addressed the criteria:

A. The ZBA shall hear and decide requests for Special Exceptions that are specifically
authorized in Table 4 Chart of Uses:

John Segedy said the applicant made it clear that the request is in the Table 4 Chart of Uses.

John Segedy made a motion on a finding of fact:

Finding of Fact: Grounds for street level residential used are specifically authorized in the Table
4 Chart of Uses

Russ Galpin seconded the motion.

Lucy Pivonka asked to amend the motion by adding the Board finds that the units proposed are
proposed to be 600 square feet or more.

John Segedy seconded the motion.

Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-Yes, John Segedy-Yes,
Meg Curtis-Sauer-Yes.

Vote on Criteria:
Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-Yes, John Segedy-Yes,
Meg Curtis-Sauer-Yes.

The criteria passed.

B. The requested use will not create undue traffic congestion or unduly impair pedestrian
safety:

Russ Galpin said the added traffic is still going to be there whether it is commercial or
residential. There is going to be very little difference in traffic with the time of day. Residential

use will have heavy traffic in the morning and the afternoon but otherwise it will be no more than
commercial.

John Segedy said this is only addressing the requested use which are the two residential units.

Page 12 of 22



ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Of those units one is being taken out because the white building will be demolished. So there is
really only an increase of one unit.

Lucy Pivonka said she didn’t see it like that because the other building was mentioned, and it is a
part of this. She asked if they had to consider the additional parking spaces that would be there
and in that case if this were granted as proposed she didn’t think that 9 spaces would be enough
for all of the units proposed and for a commercial business. She said she is also worried about
that cut and how the traffic would go in and out of there.

John Segedy said he thinks this might be a case that the Planning Board would have final say on.
He said he would be in favor of a proposed condition that he puts up a right turn only sign

coming out of the parking lot.

Robyn Payson said that the Zoning Board of Adjustment has no idea what the appropriate thing
is in this case.

Roger said that he thought getting into specifics like that is overstepping.

Lucy Pivonka said that the question was, will there be additional traffic congestion and she said
she believed there would be.

John Segedy pointed out that the application stated there were 14 parking spots proposed and not
9.

There was discussion about the proposed Findings of Fact on this question and it was determined
that the Board would go back to the Findings of Fact after the votes were taken on the criteria.

Vote on Criteria:

Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-No, J ohn Segedy-Yes, Meg
Curtis-Sauer-No.

The criteria passed.

C. The requested use will not overload any public or private water, drainage, or sewer
system or any other municipal system, nor will there be any significant increase in storm

water runoff onto adjacent property or streets. :

Lucy Pivonka said the Board received a letter from the Water/Sewer department that stated there
was sufficient capacity.

Vote on Criteria:
Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-Yes, John Segedy-Yes,
Meg Curtis-Sauer-Yes.

The criteria passed.

Page 13 of 22




ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

D. The requested use will not create excessive demand for municipal police, fire protection,
schools, or solid waste disposal services.

Roger Racette said that the applicant gave statistics on school capacity, and he indicated that
school capacity was not going to be an issue.

Vote on Criteria:
Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-Yes, John Segedy-Yes,
Meg Curtis-Sauer-Yes.

The criteria passed.

E. Any requirements and standards for the specific use as set forth in the Zoning
Ordinance are fulfilled.

Roger Racette said that they have not identified anything that has not been fulfilled.

Vote on Criteria:

Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-Yes, John Segedy-Yes,
Meg Curtis-Sauer-Yes.

The criteria passed.

F. The requested use will not create hazards to the health, safety, or general welfare of the
public, nor be detrimental to or out of character with the adjacent neighborhood.

Russ Galpin said if you look at the street down there, there are no commercial ventures from 2
West Main Street down to Eaton’s store. He said he didn’t think it is out of character to have this
as residential.

John Segedy said there is a church, and an auto parts store.

Lucy Pivonka said there is also an auto repair business and there are churches.

Russ Galpin said churches were not commercial.

Lucy Pivonka said they are not residential.

Roger Racette said he struggled with this question because you can go through the Master Plan
and the Charrette and use them to make your point either way. But when he thinks of what the
intent was of not allowing residential at the ground level, he thinks the intent was to preserve the
commercial character of the Central Business District.

Vote on Criteria:

Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-No, Lucy Pivonka-No, John Segedy-Yes, Meg
Curtis-Sauer-No.

Page 14 of 22



7BA Minutes October 27, 2022

The criteria failed

G. The requested use is consistent with the spirit and intent of this Ordinance and the
Master Plan

Vote on Criteria:
Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-No, Lucy Pivonka-No, John Segedy-Yes, Meg
Curtis-Sauer-No.

The criteria failed.

Roger Racette made a motion to deny the Special Exception to allow residential uses at strect
level on West Main Street. Lucy Pivonka seconded the motion.

Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-Yes, John Segedy-No, Meg
Curtis-Sauer-Yes.

The Special Exception was denied.

Roger Racette told the applicant what their options were at this point. Because this deals with
housing, the state has created a Housing Board of Appeals and they can appeal the Board’s
decision. They have the authority to overrule the ZBA or send it back to the ZBA. He said he
strongly recommend that they do that. He said they can also apply for a rehearing if they feel the
Board has done something illegal or if they think the Board has been unreasonable. After those
steps are taken, they can appeal to Superior Court.

Mr. Hoegen asked if the intent was to vote the same way on the other Special Exception
application?

Roger Racette said not necessarily.
John Segedy asked if that would matter to him.

Mr. Hoegen said it would matter and that he wouldn’t want it now. He said he would then see
cause for anything else. If not, he could just go home.

Roger Racette said he could not say if it would ne a no or a yes vote. The situation is different.

John Segedy said Mr. Hoegen could withdraw the second application. If they decide to appeal
and then win the appeal, you could move on with the second application.

Mir. Hoegen said that he wanted to withdraw the second application. He said his project is now
dead. Mr. Hoegen thanked the Board for their time.

They Board then returned to working on the Findings of Fact.

Page 15 of 22




ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

A. The ZBA shall hear and decide requests for Special Exceptions that are specifically

authorized in Table 4 Chart of Uses:
There was discussion about the proposed finding.

The lot is located in the Central Business District, and dwellings at street level are
authorized by Special Exception in the Table 4 Chart of Uses.

The requested use will not create undue traffic congestion or unduly impair
pedestrian safety because:

There was discussion about the proposed finding.

John Segedy asked if votes were going to be taken on the findings.

Roger Racette said he didn’t think a vote should be taken.

John Segedy said there should be a consensus.

Following discussion, the following finding was presented.

There are existing sidewalks, there are existing crosswalks, there are traffic lights which
also control pedestrian crossing.

The requested use will not overload any public or private water, drainage, or sewer
system or any other municipal system. There will not be any significant increase in
storm water runoff onto adjacent property or streets because:

There was brief discussion about the finding.

Roger Racette asked if they were voting on these.

John Segedy said there just needed to be a consensus.

Following discussion, the following finding was presented.

The Board received a letter from the Water/Sewer department stating that there is
adequate capacity.

The requested use will not create excessive demand for municipal police, fire
protection, schools, or solid waste disposal services.

Roger Racette presented the following finding.

Page 16 of 22



7ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

o The applicant provided evidence that there is school capacity, and no evidence was
presented to the contrary.

The consensus of the Board was that they agreed with the finding.

E. Any requirements and standards for the specific use as set forth in the Zoning
Ordinance are fulfilled because:

There was discussion about the finding. Russ Galpin suggested the following finding:

e The proposed apartments will be more than 600 square feet which is the requirement for
apartments in the Central Business District.

The consensus of the Board was in favor of this finding.

F. The requested use will not create hazards to the health, safety, or general welfare of
the public, nor be detrimental to or out of character with the adjacent neighborhood
because:

John Segedy said there would need to be a vote on this finding because there would not be a
consensus on it.

Robyn Payson said she didn’t know why they would need to vote on a finding. She said they
have already voted on the criteria.

Lucy Pivonka said there was no vote on the “traffic” finding and not everyone agreed on that.
Roger Racette said that he didn’t think they needed to vote on the finding.

John Segedy said then it couldn’t go in there because the notice of decision is from all of the
Board members.

Roger Racette asked if it could be an overall vote.

John Segedy said he will vote no because he doesn’t agree with all of the findings of fact. He
said the Board can only act as a body on voting. The decision is from the Board.

Robyn Payson said she is going to have to check on that with legal counsel. She said there
was a vote on the criteria and on the overall application, so the Findings of Fact would be
agreed to by the people whose vote prevailed on the criteria.

Russ Galpin said the people who voted for it should be the ones stating why they voted that
way.

John Segedy said he suggested they do vote in this instance and Robyn can get an opinion on
whether or not they should vote.

Page 17 of 22



ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Roger Racette made a motion on the following finding for why the criteria was not met.

e All public testimony indicated that this proposal to allow residential use at street level is
out of character with the adjacent neighborhood.

Lucy Pivonka seconded the motion.

Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-Yes, John Segedy-No, Meg
Curtis-Sauer-Yes.

G. The requested use is consistent with the spirit and intent of the Zoning Ordinance
and the Master Plan because:

Roger Racette made a motion on the following finding for why the criteria was not met. There
was discussion about the finding. The final version of the finding was:

e All public testimony, except for that provided by the applicant, indicated that the
proposed residential use at street level was contrary to the spirit and intent of the Zoning
Ordinance and Master Plan. The Board reviewed all of the available information and the
majority felt the project wasn’t consistent with the spirit and intent of the Zoning
Ordinance and the Master Plan.

Lucy Pivonka seconded the motion.

Roll Call Vote: Russ Galpin-Yes, Roger Racette-Yes, Lucy Pivonka-Yes, John Segedy-No, Meg
Curtis-Sauer-Yes.

John Segedy made a motion to adjourn. The motion was not seconded.
Other Discussion-Meeting Conduct

Roger Racette initiated the discussion about things that have been going on. He brought up the
“Reply All” issue with the e-mail. He said that has got to stop.

Russ Galpin asked who was doing it.

John Segedy said he has been doing it but it was only on scheduling. He said they are allowed to
communicate outside of regular meetings just about administrative scheduling. Otherwise, you
cannot have a meeting. He said it doesn’t matter if it is by e-mail or calling Robyn and her
calling everybody else, its still a sequential communication which isn’t allowed ifitis on a

substantive matter which they would be acting on.

Roger Racette said so you are saying in some cases it is ok to “Reply All”?

Page 18 0f 22



7ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

John Segedy said it would be. He said he respected the lawyer saying no. He said he mentioned
to Robyn a way around it if she uses bind copy (bec) on all of the communications. He said that
was suggested at the 91:A training.

Roger Racette asked what would be so hard about not doing it. Just don’t “Reply All”.

Meg Curtis-Sauer said she feels that if she has been told not to reply to all, that she would not do
it.

Russ Galpin said he didn’t see why that was such a problem.

Lucy Pivonka said that she remembered he did send a lot of other things of interest. She said
that was helpful except that needs to go to Robyn or Roger and then they can send it out to
everyone. '

John Segedy said it is no different whether he sends it to Robyn, and she sends it out. He said
when he sent things out, he was starting content. He said he sent out something about training or
opinions of the appeals court. He said the other case where he could do it is when talking about
a legal opinion about “Reply All”. That’s a legal opinion and they are specifically allowed to
communicate outside of it because it is a non-meeting even if it’s done electronically.

Roger Racette said Robyn has consulted a number of times with legal counsel about this and the
answer is always the same and that is don’t do it.

John Segedy said he will not “Reply All” if he wants to say something to the Board, he will type
in the e-mail addresses individually.

Lucy Pivonka said the attorney said you can’t type in all the names because that is a meeting.
Just send something to Roger or Robyn and they can handle it from there.

John Segedy made a motion to adjourn. The motion was not seconded.

Roger Racette said there was one more issue to discuss. He said that has to do with people
asking to be recognized to speak. They have talked about this a number of times; it continues to
be a problem and that has got to stop.

John Segedy said that Roger had not recognized himself tonight.

Roger Racette said that is another issue. He said he agreed to that in the hope that it would
resolve the issue. He said he didn’t believe it has. He said to John Segedy that he continues to
speak and not be recognized. He said he whole idea of asking to be recognized is just to
maintain order, so we don’t get people talking all at the same time. He said he is not looking to
be overly restrictive. He said he will recognize anybody who wants to speak but we have to have
order and those are our rules.

Page 19 of 22



ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

John Segedy said that tonight he very specifically did not do any of that at the beginning, He
said he started doing it was when Roger wasn’t recognizing himself and repeatedly started
talking back and forth with the different people that were talking and getting into different things
without recognizing himself. So if you were going to do that then he was going to do it without
asking to be recognized too.

Meg Curtis-Sauer said she thinks that is a childish behavior, very immature and it is making the
Zoning Board look like a circus. She said she doesn’t think that is the image that we need to
have in this town.

Lucy Pivonka said she agrees with that. She said Roger does not need to recognize himself. She
said if John Segedy wants to be the chairman, the next time we take votes to see who the
chairman is he can run for that.

Roger Racette said as the chairman and the person who runs the meeting, Leigh Bosse said he
came off as advocating for the applicant and he has to make sure he doesn’t do that again. He
said he really wasn’t. He was just trying to share his interpretation of the Master Plan.

Russ Galpin said that’s the nature of being on this board. He said you are going to get accused
of that sort of thing right and left because its one of the arguments they use if they think you
don’t agree with them. Every board has the same thing going on and its going to happen.

Roger Racette said that there were some very strong opinions here tonight and he guesses he
responded in like.

John Segedy said he responded by answering them instead of saying “order”,

Roger Racette said he was going to admit fault.

John Segedy said he would admit fault by following that he did get out of hand too, but at that
point it seemed it was a situation of discussion because we were not going to be using those
rules. He said he thinks the chairman should recognize himself.

Lucy Pivonka said the chairman doesn’t need to recognize himself. And she said they use the
same rules every time. Those are the same rules. Its not as though one night we decide everyone
can talk at once. She said John Segedy was arguing back and forth with Katherine Charrette and
Roger had to step in.

John Segedy said after (someone-unintelligible) did that.

Lucy Pivonka said you don’t get to do something because you thought somebody else did it. She
said he interrupted her tonight. She asked John Sedgy why he wanted to bully people.

John Segedy said she was bullying him.

Page 20 of 22



ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Roger Racette said this has to stop and the rules say that you need to be recognized and you
don’t have to raise your hand he asked to be given a nod or some indication that you want to
speak. He said as far as he needing to recognize himself, the only time he has ever seen that
done was when he was watching the January 6" Committee hearings where the chairman
recognized himself to speak for 10 minutes. Whether it is right in this environment, nobody else
does it.

Lucy Pivonka said she has sat at hundreds of all sorts of committee meetings and board
meetings, and nobody has ever done that. Its ridiculous and she doesn’t think he ought to be
doing it.

Roger said it is awkward, but he will do it if the Board wants.

Lucy Pivonka suggested taking a vote.

John Segedy brought up changes to the Rules of Procedure.

Lucy Pivonka asked for an “off the cuff” opinion vote.

John Segedy made a motion to adjourn. The motion was not seconded.

Roger Racette asked the Board to take a vote about whether or not the chairman should have to
recognize himself to speak.

John Segedy said the intent of that was for when he was speaking on the case as a member. He
said if he is just doing administrative duties as the chairman its appropriate to not do it.

Lucy Pivonka asked if John Segedy wanted a new rule that governed when the chairman could
speak and not speak.

John Segedy said he did.
Russ Galpin said in that case you propose it at this meeting and 30 days from now you vote on it.
John Segedy made a motion to adjourn. It was not seconded.

Roger Racette said lets everyone be more conscious of asking to be recognized. Whether its
right for him or not, he will have to think about it.

Roger Racette adjourned the meeting at 9:30 pm

Respectfully Submitted,
Robyn Payson, Planning Director

Page 21 of 22




ZBA Minutes October 27, 2022

Town of Hillsborough
Economic Development Commission
27 School Street
Hillsborough, NH 03244

October 27, 2022

To: Town of Hillsborough Zoning Board of Adjustment

Re: 2 West Main Street, Request to allow Street Level Conversion to Residential Use

The Economic Development Commission believes that converting the 2 West Main Street, Street
Level Space on West Main Street from Commercial Zoning to Residential use to be contrary to
our Goals and Mission statement.

Please take our position into account in making your decision.

Sincerely,

Economic Development Commission

Page 22 0f 22



Hillsborough Today-

Page 2: This included support of additional multi-family housing,
Page 13: Hillshorough has distinctive assets that include historic Village districts, affordable housing,

outdoor recreation areas, a Central Business District ready for development,

Hillsborough Tomorrow-

Page 1: These commitments need to be reflected in our community programs, housing options
Page 2: Residents are in favor of a variety of housing options,

Page 5: Responding to population changes and demographic shifts by addressing any emerging issues in
housing

Page 5: Provide opportunities throughout the Town of Hillshorough that meet the varied housing needs
of Hillsborough’s current and future residents.

Page 6: OBJECTIVE 3: Ensure a mix of housing that address changing demographics and meet the
demands of the housing market.

Page 7: Hillsborough supports an emphasis on future development and redevelopment in the Central
Business District

Existing and future land use-

Page 1: The Community Survey demonstrated support for additional economic development activities,
with nearly 74% of participants supporting infill development.

Page 3: Community Survey Question 14:

What should the Town do to encourage revitalization or growth in the Central Business
District/Downtown?

Increase/improve parking 95 answers 31.7%
Remove/repair existing buildings 51 answers 17.1%
Enhance landscape & overall Town image 32 answers 10.7%

Page 6: Bridge Village: This portion of Town is the major center of commerce for the Town. A dense
mixture of commercial uses,mixed uses and multifamily structures characterizes this area. Many of the
structures located in this area of Town were constructed at the turn of the century.

School: K-5 in 2008-2009 was 598, K-5 in 2017-2018 was 487




-




oY

ﬁd,




Map: 000023 Lot: 000148 Sub: 000000 Card: 1 of | 1 SMmH MAIN m%wmm,ﬁ HILLSBOROUGH <% Printed: 09/29/2022
OWNER: INFORMATION-- e o SALES HISTORY.: “PICTURE -
IWMAIN, LLC Date Book Page  Type Price Grantor
11/08/2021 6552 516 QI 200,000 17-19WMAINSTREETHILLSB
10/21/2013 8614 1600 UI25 55,000 E.S.C. REALTY, LLC
4 BEAR HILL ROAD 09/02/2010 8236 2474 U100 57,533 DEBRA HULL & NIC SAM
08/02/2010 8225 2012 U137 35,000 MTGLQ INVESTORS, LP
HILLSBOROUGH, NH 03244 11/20/2009 8154 1751 Ulsi 150,000 SULLIVAN, BARRY F.
i LISTING HISTORY. “NOTES:
08/22/16 NTRM FD: E>Eu TO HEAT COMMON <<>:L W/M23 L147 _N.m>hg.< HAIR
04/10/13 NTPU CUTTERS, ANTIQUES. 4/5/05 - ASKING 275,00. 5/2014: ABATEMENT
10/29/14 DMSVY INSPECTION W/OWNERS. FFF, RBF SECTIONS UNDER REMODEL. FFF TO
05/28/14 DMAL BE CONVERTED TO (2) APT RENTAL UNITS OF 1RED/ IBATH. UFF SECT=(2)
03/19/09 RERM CURRENT RENTAL UNITS OF A 2BED/IBATH AND 3BED/IBATH. RBF
06/07/04 KHX SECT=POSSIBLE (2) RETAIL RENTALS OF 1200SF AND 600SF +/-. ADD UC
20% FOR CURRENT STATE. ADJ. VALUE PER REVIEW. 2016 CYC MEAS N/C
CK 2018 FORUC
S EXTRA FEATURES VALUATION - MUNICIPAL SOFTWARE BY AVITAR
Feature Type Units Lngth x Width  Size Adj Rate Cond Market Value Notes TOWN OF HILLSBOROUGH
PARCEL TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE
Year Building Features Land
2022 $ 137,900 $0 $ 37,500
Parcel Total: § 175,400
: LAND VALUATION LAST WM<>§U>.:OZH 2020
Zone: COMM-WS  Minimum Acreage: 0.92 Minimum Frontage: 200 Site: Drivevia Road:
Land Type Units Base Rate  NC  Adj Site Road DWay Topography Cond  Ad Valorem SPI R Tax Value Notes
COM/IND 0.100 ac 50,000 9 75 100 100 100 100 37,500 0 N 37,500
0.100 ac 37,500 37,500




